
 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
Regular Meeting Agenda  
Wednesday November 06, 2024  

6:30 P.M.  
 

If you need any assistance due to a disability, please contact the Planning Department 
at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting at planning@ypsitownship.org  

or 734-544-4000 ext. 1. 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order 

2. Roll Call – Determination of a quorum  

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Approval of the September 18, 2024, Special Meeting Minutes  

5. Public Hearing  

Applicant: Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority  
Location:     2777 State Street, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
Parcel ID:   K-11-13-283-001 

        Request:  Article 15 – Sec. 1509.3.B: Maximum Height, Maximum Area and 
Minimum Setback Requirements for Ground Signs: Request for 
variance to the maximum height and area for a ground sign located 
in the I-C, Industrial and Commercial Zoning District.  

 
Applicant: A1 Signs and Graphics   
Location:     1900 Packard Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
Parcel ID:   K-11-06-479-007 

        Request:  Article 15 – Sec. 1509.6: Permitted Signs in Form-Based Districts: 
Request for variance to the height and area of ground sign 
requirements in form-based districts.  

 
Applicant: John and Robin Eggertsen  
Location:     6369 Munger Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
Parcel ID:   K-11-30-200-039 

        Request:  Article 8 – Sec. 802: Accessory Buildings and Accessory Uses: 
Request for variance to the frontage requirements for pole barns.   

 
6. Open discussion for issues not on the agenda 

a. Planning Department report 
b. Correspondence received. 
c. Zoning Board of Appeals members 

mailto:planning@ypsitownship.org


 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

d. Members of the audience and public 
 

7. Any other business that may come before the Zoning Board of Appeals 

8. Adjournment  
(THERE IS NO WORK SESSION) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 6 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
Wednesday, September 18, 2024 

6:30 pm 
  

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 

Elizabeth El-Assadi  
Stan Eldridge 
David Marshell 
Edward Burnett 
  

STAFF AND CONSULTANTS  

Sally Elmiger, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
 
• CALL TO ORDER/ESTABLISH QUORUM 

MOTION: Ms. El-Assadi called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. Ms. El-Assadi  
completed the roll call and confirmed a quorum was established. 
 

• APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION: Mr. Eldridge MOVED to approve the agenda as presented. The MOTION 
was SECONDED by Mr. Burnett and PASSED by unanimous consent. 

 

• APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 4, 2024, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MOTION: Mr. Eldridge MOVED to approve the September 4, 2024; Regular 
Meeting Minutes as presented. The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Marshell and 
PASSED by unanimous consent. 

 

• PUBLIC HEARING 

Applicant: Skilken Gold 

Location: 755 S. Hewitt Rd., 2103 and 2059 W. Michigan Avenue, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Parcel ID: K-11-18-100-019, K-11-39-350-023, and K-11-39-350-022 



Page 2 of 6 
 

Request: Article 5 – Sec. 507.E: Transparency Requirements: Request for variances to 
the transparency requirements on W. Michigan Ave. and S. Hewitt St and East facades 
in form-based districts. 

Ms. Sally Elmiger, Carlisle Wortman Associates (Planning Consultant to Ypsilanti 
Township) informed the Zoning Board that the applicant had presented a request for 
variance for the transparency requirements on W. Michigan Ave. and S. Hewitt St in 
August 2024. The new request is for the East side of the building. The applicant has 
submitted the revised plans. Ms. Elmiger stated that they reviewed the criteria to decide 
if the variance has been justified in the zoning ordinance. 
 
Ms. Sally Elmiger shared with the Zoning Board on some of opinions with regards to 
the criteria's: 
• The practical difficulty is that there is no back to this property since the zoning 

ordinance requires the applicant to put up the building directly next to the street 
facades. The rear of the building is also a front facade, leading to having four fronts 
on this building. One of the main concerns of the proposal is the side having the 
least amount of transparency is facing Michigan Avenue. The new plans show that 
the Michigan Avenue side still doesn't meet the transparency requirements, the 
applicant has modified the architecture on this side, and it looks like a front that is 
facing Michigan Avenue and it does not look like the rear of the building. The 
applicant has enlarged the windows, which are out of the two feet to eight-foot area, 
where transparency is calculated; the window sizes are larger, even without a change 
in the calculation (meets the practical difficulty standard). 

• That a variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right possessed by other properties in the same zoning 
district: The new redesign of the building meets the intent of the form-based code 
by presenting fronts of buildings along Michigan Avenue and South Hewitt, which 
is welcoming to customers and the ability to see the activities in the building. On 
the South Hewitt side, the applicant has modified the building orientation, so the 
patio is on South Hewitt creating a welcoming environment for pedestrians. The 
east facade serves as a second service entrance which would be facing the residential 
properties. Another benefit of this redesign is the building between the patio and the 
residences, and the activities on the patio would be less intrusive to the residents 
that live east of the building. 



Page 3 of 6 
 

• The variance will not be a substantial detriment to adjacent property: 
Modifying the patio location would buffer those residences from any activity on the 
patio. 

• The problem and resulting need for the variance has not been self-created by 
any action: The business is needing a back of house on some facade, the difficulty 
to have four facades that are all fronts that doesn't permit any service activities. The 
applicant has made efforts to put facades facing the streets and has decorated them. 

• The proposed variance will be the minimum necessary: Ms. Sally Elmiger 
informed the Zoning Board that the numbers in her review letter were based on the 
plans submitted for the recent variance, the applicant had discovered some errors 
made in those calculations. The variances may be slightly larger in the percentages, 
but the elevations have not changed. 

 
 
The applicant David. B Sheetz informed the Zoning Board that they considered the 
feedback and made changes and was able to accomplish the intent of the code. Sheetz is 
a family business, started in 1952 in central Pennsylvania. The proposal is for a 3.65-
acre site; 6,132 square foot restaurant, convenience store, eight fuel eight fuel stations 
and landscaping onsite. Mr. Sheetz presented the ZBA with pictures of the changes 
made; the east side of the building, which is now the South Hewitt side. One of the 
things considered is moving the patio and bigger windows onto the South Hewitt side, 
and the bottom elevation would be presented under the South Hewitt side. Other changes 
were the outdoor patio screening area, big windows on the east side, and Michigan 
Avenue. Effort was made to increase the visual appeal, and the addition of cupolas. On 
the east side, an addition of another window to increase the architecture and creating an 
alternate entrance to the building. Mr. Sheetz informed the ZBA that he is working with 
the architects on making changes to meet the transparency requirement on the elevation; 
meet the building code for energy efficiency. 
 
Mr. Sheetz presented some visual glimpse inside of the building; South Hewitt side, 
(kitchen)/ ice machine (cooler); interior parking lot; restroom. 
 
Mr. Sheetz informed the ZBA on the rectification of the miscalculations. 
 
Ms. Sally Elmiger stated that the fueling canopy side would meet the 30% (no variance 
required for the fuel canopy side); South Hewitt side, the new percentage is 34.48 (CWA 



Page 4 of 6 
 

review shows it at 40.07); the Michigan Avenue side was 8.9 which would be going 
down to 7 (this is only for the see through windows); East side the percentage is 5.54. 
 
The applicant David. B Sheetz informed the Zoning Board that his attorney (Pat Len) 
had submitted a revised supplement to the variance application (changes to the 
elevation) to the staff. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 6:52 PM 
 
• Darrell Cell (808 Gouchnour) expressed his appreciation for the changes made to 

South Hewitt side (dead end street). Michigan Avenue has high traffic with a 
visibility of 7% which is a concern for public safety. Transparency requirement is to 
be considered. A 24-hour store is vulnerable to crime and certain risks. 

• Margaret Cell (808 Gouchnour) inquired on what basis did Sheetz considered the 
location near the residential area. 

• Lewis Frye Jr. (2103 W. Michigan Avenue) stated that he was impressed with the 
presentation and the improvements made; a good effort to make it work for the 
township and the community. 

• Jan Curry (2080 W. Michigan Avenue) shared her concern that Sheetz is compared 
to Walmart/ Sams Club that would take over small businesses; disruption of life; 
traffic concerns. The Township should consider the residents first before making 
decisions. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ENDED AT 6:59 PM 
 
The Zoning Board informed the public that they are unaware on how Sheetz selected 
the location; The township doesn't currently have an Economic Development Director, 
and Sheetz have found this place on their own. The ZBA has been meeting internally to 
discuss the ordinances and have had a number of businesses that have chosen not to 
make concessions to try to adhere to the expected transparency requirements. 
Appreciation was extended to Sheetz for the efforts made to work with the Township 
and the attempt to make changes while working with the Planning Department/ 
Consultants. This business will provide job opportunities to the community. This would 
also help in the tax base to pay for emergency services (police, fire, EMT). 
 
MOTION: Mr. Eldridge MOVED to approve the variance request at 2103 E. Michigan 
Avenue, 2509 E. Michigan Avenue, and 755 S. Hewitt Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, 



Page 5 of 6 
 

Parcel K-11-39-350-023, K-11-39-350-022, and K-11-18-100-019 to the transparency 
requirements outlined in Article 5 –Sec. 503.7 is shown on the site plan included in The 
Zoning Board of Appeals packet dated September 18, 2024. 
 
• Granting the requested variance meets the criteria for a non-use variance in Section 

17, 04 Section D of the zoning ordinance. 
• Specifically granting the requested variances based on the fact that there is practical 

difficulty with the existing ordinance that was not self-created by the applicant. 
• It does not present a substantial detriment to adjacent properties. 
• Allows the applicant the use and enjoyment of the property as others in that zoning 

district have with their properties. 
 
The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Burnett. 
 
Ms. Sally Elmiger (CWA) reminded the Board to make a friendly amendment to 
the Motion stating that the amended site plan considering the new calculation that 
was presented at the meeting. 
 
The Board agreed to the amendment to the Motion, 
  
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Burnett (Yes); Mr. Stan Eldridge (Yes); Mr. David Marshell (Yes); 
Ms. Elizabeth El-Assadi (Yes). 
  
MOTION PASSED. 
 

 
• OPEN DISCUSSION FOR ISSUES NOT ON AGENDA 

 
• PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT: 

None to Report. 

 

• CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED: 
None to Report. 

 

• ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEMBERS: 



Page 6 of 6 
 

 

Ms. Elizabeth El-Assadi stated that with the increase in transparency issues, it would 
be recommended to have the Township attorney along with the Planning 
Department to be present for the meetings. 

 

• MEMBERS OF THE AUDIENCE/PUBLIC: 
 
None to Report. 

 

• OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE ZONING BOARD 

Ms. Sally Elmiger informed the ZBA of an applicant who is moving closer to a deadline 
since they were waiting for the school to start before, they conduct a traffic impact study. 
They may not be able to come to the November ZBA meeting. The request is for a 
meeting on October 16, 2024. 

 

• ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION: Mr. Eldridge MOVED to adjourn at 7:05 p.m. The MOTION was 
SECONDED by Mr. Burnett and PASSED by unanimous consent. 
 

========================================================================= 
Respectfully submitted by Minutes Services 

 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

 
November 06, 2024  

 
Applicant: Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority (YCUA) 
 
Location: 2777 State Street, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, Parcel K-11-13-283-001 
 
Zoning: I-C, Industrial and Commercial 
 
Action Requested: Request for variance to the sign requirements of Article 15 – Sec. 
1509.3.B 
 
Variance Request: 
Request for a variance from the ground sign regulations under Article 15 – Sec. 1509.3.B 
– Permitted Ground Signs of the Township Zoning Ordinance, to allow the construction 
of a ground sign that exceeds the permitted height and area size limits. 
 
Location and Summary of Request: 
The subject site is a 71-acre parcel located at the intersection of State Street and 
McGregor Road, zoned I-C (Industrial and Commercial), and home to the Ypsilanti 
Community Utilities Authority (YCUA). YCUA provides essential water and sanitary sewer 
services to residents in the surrounding area. 
 
The applicant is requesting a variance from Article 15 – Sec. 1509.3.B of the Township 
Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, YCUA seeks approval from the Zoning Board of Appeals 
for a 21-square-foot variance to exceed the 32-square-foot maximum sign area 
requirement, as well as a 6-inch variance beyond the 6-foot height limit. The proposed 
ground sign would measure 6.6 feet in height, 6 inches above the allowable height, and 
encompass 53 square feet in total area, which is 21 square feet more than the permitted 
maximum. 
 
Cross References: 
Article 15 – Sign Requirements  
Article 17 – Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Aerial View – 2777 State Street 
 

 
 
Per Sec. 1509.3.B 
 

Maximum Height, Maximum Area and Minimum Setback Requirements for Ground 
Signs Table 3.B 

 
District Minimum 

Setback 
(ft) 

Maximum 
Area (sq. ft.) 

per side 

Maximum 
Height 

Proposed 
Area 

Proposed 
Height 

I-C 
Industrial 

and 
Commercial 

15’ 32 6’ 53 sq. ft. 
 

Variance =  
21 sq. ft. 

6.6 ft. 
 

Variance =           
0.5 ft. 

 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
 

Street View – 2777 State Street 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Analysis:  
The Zoning Board of Appeals may grant a dimensional or non-use variance only upon a 
finding that compliance with the strict letter of the restrictions governing area, setbacks, 
frontage, height, bulk, density, or other dimensional provisions would create a practical 
difficulty and unreasonably present the use of the property.  A finding of practical difficulty 
shall require demonstration that all the following conditions are met: 
 
1. That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions 

applying to the property in question that do not apply generally to other 
properties or classes of uses in the same zoning district. 
 

The property at 2777 State Street, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, home to the Ypsilanti Community 
Utilities Authority (YCUA). As a critical community resource providing water and sanitary 
sewer services to residents, YCUA's operations require security measures, including 
fencing around the facility. The current and proposed signs are located behind this 
necessary fencing, creating visibility challenges that do not apply to other properties in 
the zoning district. Unlike typical commercial properties, YCUA’s essential public utility 
function mandates heightened security while ensuring that residents can clearly identify 
the facility. 

 
Additionally, State Street is a busy thoroughfare with significant traffic, making visibility of 
the sign more challenging. The need for effective communication to drivers, combined 
with the fence line, creates a unique condition where a larger and taller sign is necessary 
to achieve visibility while maintaining the security of the site. 
 
2. That a variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 

property right possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and in 
the vicinity. 

 
The requested variances for a sign that exceeds the height and size limits are necessary 
to ensure that residents and service users can easily locate the facility and maintain the 
utilities security. 
 
3. That the authorizing of such a variance will not be a substantial detriment to 

adjacent property, will not be harmful to or alter the essential character of the 
area, and will not materially impair the purposes of this Ordinance or the public 
interest. 

 
The character of the area is an industrial setting on a very large, open parcel.  In our 
opinion, a slightly taller, larger sign will not negatively impact the character of the area.  A 
sign with greater visibility will actually support (vs. impair) the purposes of the Ordinance 
and public interest.  . 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

4. The property and resulting need for the variance has not been self-created by 
any action of the applicant or the applicant’s predecessors. 

 
The need for the variance arises from the organization’s critical infrastructure role and the 
security requirements that necessitate fencing, which obstructs visibility. These 
conditions are not the result of any action taken by YCUA but are instead driven by the 
operational need to protect essential services provided to the public.  
 
5. The proposed variance will be the minimum necessary and no variance shall be 

granted where a different solution not requiring a variance would be possible. 
 

The requested 6-inch height increase, and 21-square-foot area increase are the minimum 
necessary to achieve adequate visibility from State Street, and McGregor Road 
considering the fencing that must remain in place for security. The proposed sign is 
designed to balance the need for visibility with the goal of minimizing impact, ensuring 
that the variance is the least intrusive option while fulfilling its functional purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Suggested motions:  The following suggested motions and conditions are provided 
to assist the Zoning Board of Appeals in making a complete and appropriate motion for 
this application.  The ZBA may utilize, add, or reject any portion of the suggested motion 
or any conditions suggested herein, as deemed appropriate. 
 
Postpone: 

I move to postpone the variance requests at 2777 State Street, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, Parcel 
K-11-13-283-001 to the sign requirements of Section 1509.3.B of the Township Zoning 
Ordinance for the construction of a 6.6-foot tall, 53 sq. ft. ground sign behind the existing 
fence, as shown on the plot plan included in the Zoning Board of Appeals Application 
dated October 7, 2024. This postponement is to provide the applicant an opportunity to 
address the comments made at this evening's meeting and return with a revised proposal 
reflecting those comments. 

Approve: 

I move to approve the variance requests at 2777 State Street, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, Parcel 
K-11-13-283-001 to the sign requirements of Section 1509.3.B of the Township Zoning 
Ordinance for the construction of a 6.6-foot tall, 53 sq. ft. ground sign behind the existing 
fence, as shown on the plot plan included in the Zoning Board of Appeals Application 
dated October 7, 2024. Granting of the requested variances meets the criteria for a non-
use variance in Section 1704(D) of the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, the approval is 
based on the following findings: 

1. There are exceptional conditions applying to this property that do not generally 
apply to other properties in the district, such as YCUA’s critical public utility function 
and the need for security fencing around the property, which obstructs visibility of 
the sign. 

2. The variance will ensure adequate identification of the property for residents and 
service users, maintaining safe and clear visibility from State Street, given the 
facility's vital role in the community. 

3. The variances will not be a substantial detriment to adjacent properties and will not 
materially impair the purposes of this ordinance or the public interest. The sign is 
located behind the fence and will not alter the essential character of the area. 

4. The need for the variances is not self-created, as the fence is required for security 
purposes given the critical infrastructure housed on-site, and this has created 
visibility challenges for the sign. 

5. The proposed variances are the minimum necessary to ensure visibility of the sign 
while maintaining the security of the facility. 

This motion is further made with the following conditions:  
1. The applicant shall obtain the required building permits and applicable trade 

permits for the construction of the sign.  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Denial: 

I move to deny the variance requests at 2777 State Street, Ypsilanti, MI 48198, Parcel K-
11-13-283-001 to the sign requirements of Section 1509.3.B of the Township Zoning 
Ordinance for the construction of a 6.6-foot tall, 53 sq. ft. ground sign behind the existing 
fence, as shown on the plot plan included in the Zoning Board of Appeals Application 
dated October 7, 2024, based on the following findings of fact that the requests do not 
meet the criteria in Section 1704(D) of the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, the request 
does not comply with the following criteria: (ZBA states reasons for denial). 
1. ________________________________________________________________  
  
2. ________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Fletcher Reyher  
 
Fletcher Reyher, AICP  
Planning and Development Coordinator 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Planning Department 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Office of Community Standards  
7200 S. Huron Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197  
Phone: (734) 485-3943   
Website: https://ytown.org  
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-3943 
 

ZONING BOARD OF 
APPEALS APPLICATION 

 
 I. APPLICATION TYPE 

 Variance 
 Exceptions and Special Approvals (Includes: Temporary Uses and Structures) 
 Administrative Review Appeal 
 
 
II. PROJECT LOCATION 
Address: _________________________________ Parcel ID #: K-11-_______________________ Zoning _________ 
Lot Number: ______________ Subdivision: __________________________ 
 
 
III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Applicant: ______________________________________________________ Phone: ________________ 
Address: _________________________________________ City: ____________________ State: ____ Zip: _________ 
Fax: ________________ Email: _________________________________________ 
Property Owner: __________________________________________________ Phone: __________________ 
Address: _________________________________________ City: ____________________ State: ____ Zip: _________ 
Fax: ________________ Email: _________________________________________ 
 
 
IV. COST AND FEES       
Total: $______      Breakdown of fee:  Residential:   $ 125.00 
         Non-residential:  $ 500.00 
 
 
V. APPLICANT SIGNATURE 

 
The undersigned _______________________ represents ______________________:  
 
1. That ________________________ is/are the owner(s) of lot(s) __________ located in the ______________  

Subdivision , Ypsilanti Township, Michigan, otherwise known as  _____________________________ and the property is 

zoned _________  

2. That the petitioner hereby request ______________ under Section _____ Article _____ of the Ypsilanti Township 

Zoning Ordinance.  

3. The petitioner further state that ______ have/has read and understands the provisions of said zoning ordinance as it 

applies to this petition.  

4. That the following is submitted in support of the petition (attach all pertinent data to support the request). 

 
______________________________  ______________________________  ________________ 
Applicant Signature    Print Name     Date 
 
 

Variance/Temporary Use 
/Regular Meeting 

Section Article 

Zoning District 

Address 

Lot Subdivision Property Owner 

Property Owner Applicant 

Applicant 
Initial 

$500

https://ytown.org/


Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Office of Community Standards  
7200 S. Huron Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197  
Phone: (734) 485-3943   
Website: https://ytown.org  
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-3943 

 
OFFICE USE ONLY 

 
 

 
All Zoning Board of Appeals Applications 
 The application is filled out in its entirety. 
 If the applicant is not the property owner, written and signed 

permission from the property owner is required. 

 Fees 
 Letter of interest of the applicant in the property 

 Plot plan or lot survey to scale showing the following: 
 All property lines and dimensions 

 All existing and proposed structures and dimensions 

 Lot area calculations necessary to show compliance with 
regulations 

 Easements and dimensions, if applicable 
 Location of drives, sidewalks, and other paved areas on the 

property and on the adjacent streets. 
 Location and dimensions of the nearest structures on 

adjacent properties. 

 

https://ytown.org/


140” x 56” x 12” Cabinet - 2 Sided

12” Cabinet

42” 3000 psi Concrete Footer

142” x 24” x 15” Brick Base
GRADE

56”

24”

80” Overall



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

 
November 06, 2024  

 
Applicant: A7 Signs & Graphics  
 
Location: 1900 Packard Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel K-11-06-479-007 
 
Zoning: NC, Neighborhood Corridor, with a Site Type A Designation  
 
Action Requested: Request for variance to the sign requirements of Article 15 – Sec. 
1509.6 
 
Variance Request: 
Request for variance to the ground sign requirements of Article 15 – Sec. 1509.6 – 
Permitted signs in form-based districts of the Township Zoning Ordinance to construct a 
ground sign that exceeds the height and size requirements allowed.  
 
Location and Summary of Request: 
The subject site is a 0.395-acre parcel, located at the Packard Road and Kewanee Street 
intersection. The property is zoned NC, Neighborhood Corridor, with a Site Type A 
Designation. This property is owned by Siddiqui Properties, LLC and is used as a multi-
tenant space with medical and dental services.  
 
The applicant is seeking relief from Article 15 – Sec. 1509.6 – Permitted signs in form-
based districts. A7 Signs & Graphics are asking the Zoning Board of Appeals to consider 
granting them a 52 sq. ft. variance, and a 7-foot height variance to the required 20 sq. ft. 
sign area and 4-foot height requirement.  
 
Staff visited the site on October 14, 2024, and determined that the existing sign is 
approximately 9-feet tall and 4-feet wide for an area of 36 sq. ft.  
 
Cross References: 
Article 15 – Sign Requirements  
Article 17 – Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Aerial View – 1900 Packard Road 
 

 
 
Per Sec. 1509.6 
 
On parcels less than one (1) acre, the maximum size of a ground sign shall not exceed 
twenty (20) square feet in area. Additionally, on parcels less than one (1) acre, the 
maximum height of a ground sign shall not exceed six (4) feet in height.  
 

Neighborhood Corridor Sign 
Requirements  

Required Proposed Required 
Variances 

Sign Square Footage  20 sq. ft.  72 sq. ft.  52 sq. ft. 
Sign Height  4-foot Maximum 11-foot tall 7 feet 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Street View – 1900 Packard Road (Photos taken on October 14, 2024) 
 

 
 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
Analysis:  
The Zoning Board of Appeals may grant a dimensional or non-use variance only upon a 
finding that compliance with the strict letter of the restrictions governing area, setbacks, 
frontage, height, bulk, density, or other dimensional provisions would create a practical 
difficulty and unreasonably present the use of the property.  A finding of practical difficulty 
shall require demonstration that all the following conditions are met: 
 
1. That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions 

applying to the property in question that do not apply generally to other 
properties or classes of uses in the same zoning district. 
 

The existing building at 1900 Packard Road appears to accommodate seven individual 
medical/dental businesses. Packard Rd. in this location is a 35mph roadway.  We 
consider these factors as creating conditions that make advertising the individual 
medical/dental businesses on one ground sign so that drivers can locate a particular 
business challenging. 
 
Additionally, the existing signage requirements of 20 sq. ft. and 4 feet in height do not 
accommodate the listing of multiple tenants, making it difficult for the businesses on the 
property to adequately promote themselves to passing traffic. These circumstances 
create an exceptional condition that justifies the request for a larger sign to meet the 
needs of both the businesses and the community.  Note our comments under the criteria 
for the minimum variance necessary for reasonable use of the property below. 
 
2. That a variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 

property right possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and in 
the vicinity. 

 
The current signage limitations do not provide adequate space to list the multiple tenants 
on one ground sign, which could hinder the visibility and success of these businesses. 
The inability to install a sign large enough to accommodate multiple tenants could place 
the applicant at a disadvantage compared to other properties in the vicinity where the 
current ordinance limitations allow for adequate visibility. 
 
3. That the authorizing of such a variance will not be a substantial detriment to 

adjacent property, will not be harmful to or alter the essential character of the 
area, and will not materially impair the purposes of this Ordinance or the public 
interest. 
 

Granting the variances as proposed could negatively impact the overall character of the 
area, as the other property owners have complied with the ordinance limitations. 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

However, some additional area/height may be needed to adequately advertise seven 
businesses at this site.  See our comments under criteria 5.   
 
4. The property and resulting need for the variance has not been self-created by 

any action of the applicant or the applicant’s predecessors. 
 
The need for the variance is not self-created. The challenges stem from the number of 
individual businesses that occupy the building and the property’s location on a 35mph 
roadway. The applicant did not build the building or create the road's conditions. 
 
5. The proposed variance will be the minimum necessary and no variance shall be 

granted where a different solution not requiring a variance would be possible. 
 

The proposed sign design allocates 50% of the space to one occupant of the building 
and divides the remaining 50% among the six other occupants of the building.  The 
electronic message center occupies approximately 3.5 feet of the proposed height, and 
19.5 sq. ft. of the proposed sign area.  If the electronic message center were eliminated, 
this would reduce the height of the sign to 7.5 ft., reducing the height variance to 3.5 
feet.  It would also reduce the area of the sign to 52.5 sq ft., reducing the area variance 
to 32.5 sq. ft.  In our opinion, eliminating the electronic message center will still allow the 
applicant to provide adequate signage for each tenant without being excessive, helping 
to maintain compatibility with the character of the corridor and nearby properties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Suggested motions:  The following suggested motions and conditions are provided 
to assist the Zoning Board of Appeals in making a complete and appropriate motion for 
this application.  The ZBA may utilize, add, or reject any portion of the suggested motion 
or any conditions suggested herein, as deemed appropriate. 
 
Postpone: 

I move to postpone the variance requests at 1900 Packard Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, 
Parcel K-11-06-479-007 to the sign requirements of Section 1506.6 of the Township 
Zoning Ordinance for the construction of an 11-foot tall, 72 sq. ft. ground sign within the 
building envelope as shown on the plot plan included in the Zoning Board of Appeals 
Application dated August 8, 2024, to give the applicant an opportunity to address the 
comments made at this evening’s meeting and return with a revised proposal based on 
these comments. 

Approve: 

I move to approve the variance requests at 1900 Packard Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, 
Parcel K-11-06-479-007 to the sign requirements of Section 1506.6 of the Township 
Zoning Ordinance for the construction of an 11-foot tall (or 7.5-foot-tall), 72 sq. ft. (or 52.5 
sq. ft.) ground sign within the building envelope as shown on the plot plan included in the 
Zoning Board of Appeals Application dated August 8, 2024 (or as modified at this 
evening’s meeting). Granting of the requested variances meets the criteria for a non-use 
variance in Section 1704(D) of the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, granting the requested 
variances is based on the following facts: 

1. There are exceptional conditions applying to this property that do not generally 
apply to other properties in this district, including the multi-tenant nature of the 
exiting building compounded by the location along a 5-lane road with a 35-mph 
speed limit; 

2. The variances are necessary to provide adequate identification for the property’s 
multiple tenants, especially given the high traffic volume and the busy commercial 
corridor; 

3. The variances (as modified) will not be a substantial detriment to adjacent property 
and will not materially impair the purposes of this ordinance or the public interest; 

4. The need for the variances is not self-created, as the applicant did not create the 
visibility challenges or the multi-tenant nature of the building; 

5. The proposed variances (as modified) are the minimum necessary to ensure 
adequate visibility for the tenants given the site conditions and surrounding 
context. 

This motion is further made with the following condition:  
1. The applicant shall obtain the required building permits and applicable trade 

permits for the construction of the sign. 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

  
Denial: 

I move to deny the variance requests at 1900 Packard Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel 
K-11-06-479-007 to the sign requirements of Section 1506.6 of the Township Zoning 
Ordinance for the construction of an 11-foot tall, 72 sq. ft. ground sign within the building 
envelope as shown on the plot plan included in the Zoning Board of Appeals Application 
dated August 8, 2024, based on the following findings of fact that the requests do not 
meet the criteria in Section 1704(D) of the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, the request 
does not comply with the following criteria: (ZBA states reasons for denial) 
1. ________________________________________________________________  
  
2. ________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Fletcher Reyher  
 
Fletcher Reyher, AICP  
Planning and Development Coordinator 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Planning Department 
 

























 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

 
November 06, 2024  

 
Applicant: John and Robin Eggertsen  
 
Location: 6369 Munger Road, Ypsilanti, MI, 48197, Parcel K-11-30-200-039 
 
Zoning: R-1, One-Family Residential   
 
Action Requested: Request for variance to the frontage requirements of Article 8 – 
Sec. 802.12 
 
Variance Request: 
Request for a variance from the road frontage regulations for a pole barn under Article 8 
– Sec. 802.12 of the Township Zoning Ordinance, to allow the construction of a 1,200 sq. 
ft. pole barn on a 12-acre property with 80-feet of frontage. The Township zoning 
ordinance requires properties to have 150-feet of frontage along a road for the 
construction of a pole barn.  
 
Location and Summary of Request: 
The subject property is a 12-acre flag-shaped parcel located on Munger Road, just south 
of the intersection with Textile Road. The applicant, John and Robin Eggertsen, are 
requesting a variance from Article 8, Section 802.12 of the Township Zoning Ordinance. 
Specifically, they are seeking approval from the Zoning Board of Appeals for a 70-foot 
variance from the 150-foot road frontage requirement to allow the construction of a pole 
barn. The property has only 80 feet of frontage due to the “flag” shape of the lot. 
 
Cross References: 
Article 8 – General Provisions  
Article 17 – Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Aerial View – 6369 Munger Road 
 

 
 
Per Sec. 802.12 – Pole Barn Requirements 
 
Requirements: Acreage 

(1.5-Acres) 
Frontage 

(150ft) 
Rear/Side 
Setbacks 

(10ft) 

Height 
(20ft) 

Location 
(Rear Yard) 

Provided: 12.390 
Acres 

80 ft. 110 Rear Yard 
137 Side Yard 

+/- 18 ft. Rear Yard 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Analysis:  
The Zoning Board of Appeals may grant a dimensional or non-use variance only upon a 
finding that compliance with the strict letter of the restrictions governing area, setbacks, 
frontage, height, bulk, density, or other dimensional provisions would create a practical 
difficulty and unreasonably present the use of the property.  A finding of practical difficulty 
shall require demonstration that all the following conditions are met: 
 
1. That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions 

applying to the property in question that do not apply generally to other 
properties or classes of uses in the same zoning district. 
 

The property at 6369 Merritt Road is a unique flag-shaped lot with only 80 feet of frontage 
along Merritt Road, and a driveway approximately 1,300 feet long. The property spans 12 
acres, far exceeding the minimum lot size for a pole barn, but the narrow frontage limits 
the ability to meet the ordinance’s frontage requirement of 150 feet. This configuration is 
not typical for other residential properties in the zoning district, which generally have 
greater frontage and rectangular shape. The large acreage and narrow access are 
extraordinary conditions unique to this parcel. 
 
2. That a variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 

property right possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and in 
the vicinity. 

 
The property is located in the southern portion of the Township, where parcels outside of 
a subdivision are generally larger in size, creating a more “rural” character.  Properties in 
this part of the Township often have accessory buildings, including pole barns, the 
requested variance would allow the applicant the same property rights as other properties 
with more conventional frontages/shapes enjoy. 
 
3. That the authorizing of such a variance will not be a substantial detriment to 

adjacent property, will not be harmful to or alter the essential character of the 
area, and will not materially impair the purposes of this Ordinance or the public 
interest. 

 
Granting this variance will not negatively impact adjacent properties or alter the essential 
character of the area. The proposed pole barn will be in the rear of the property, and will 
comply with all other ordinance requirements, including setbacks and height limitations. 
Moreover, due to the 1,300-foot driveway, the pole barn will have minimal visibility from 
the street and neighboring properties, mitigating any potential visual impact. 
 
4. The property and resulting need for the variance has not been self-created by 

any action of the applicant or the applicant’s predecessors. 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

The need for the variance stems from the existing lot configuration, specifically the flag 
shape and narrow frontage. These conditions were not created by the applicant but are 
inherent to the property’s layout. The driveway and frontage limitations are factors beyond 
the applicant’s control, and without a variance, the applicant would be unable to construct 
a pole barn despite the large size of the parcel. 
 
5. The proposed variance will be the minimum necessary and no variance shall be 

granted where a different solution not requiring a variance would be possible. 
 

The requested variance is the minimum necessary to allow the applicant to construct the 
pole barn. The applicant has no other option for increasing the lot frontage, and the narrow 
frontage is the only impediment to compliance with the ordinance. The variance request 
does not seek to waive any other requirements, ensuring that the proposal remains the 
least intrusive solution to the applicant’s practical difficulty. 
 
Suggested motions:  The following suggested motions and conditions are provided 
to assist the Zoning Board of Appeals in making a complete and appropriate motion for 
this application.  The ZBA may utilize, add, or reject any portion of the suggested motion 
or any conditions suggested herein, as deemed appropriate. 
 
Postpone: 

I move to postpone the variance request at 6369 Munger Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, 
Parcel K-11-30-200-039 to the frontage requirement of Section 802.12 of the Township 
Zoning Ordinance for the construction of a pole barn on a lot with 80 feet of frontage, as 
shown on the plot plan included in the Zoning Board of Appeals Application dated October 
11, 2024. This postponement is to provide the applicant an opportunity to address the 
comments made at this evening's meeting and return with a revised proposal reflecting 
those comments. 

Approve: 

I move to approve the variance request at 6369 Munger Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel 
K-11-30-200-039 to the frontage requirement of Section 802.12 of the Township Zoning 
Ordinance for the construction of a pole barn on a lot with 80 feet of frontage, as shown 
on the plot plan included in the Zoning Board of Appeals Application dated October 11, 
2024. Granting of the requested variance meets the criteria for a non-use variance in 
Section 1704(D) of the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, the approval is based on the 
following findings: 

1. There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances applying to this property that 
do not generally apply to other properties in the district. The flag-shaped lot with 
only 80 feet of frontage, a 1,300-foot-long driveway, and 12 acres of land present 
unique challenges that limit development potential under the current ordinance. 



Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

2. The variance is necessary for the preservation of a substantial property right,
allowing the applicant to construct a pole barn like what is allowed on other
properties in the district that meet the frontage requirements.

3. The variance will not be a substantial detriment to adjacent properties and will not
materially impair the purposes of the ordinance or the public interest. The pole barn
will comply with all other ordinance requirements, including setbacks, height, and
location in the rear yard, ensuring it does not alter the essential character of the
area.

4. The need for the variance is not self-created, as the narrow frontage and flag-
shaped layout of the lot were pre-existing conditions that limit compliance with the
frontage requirement.

5. The variance is the minimum necessary to allow the applicant to construct the pole
barn on the property while complying with all other zoning requirements.

This motion is further made with the following conditions: 
1. The applicant shall obtain the required building permits and applicable trade

permits for the construction of the pole barn.

Denial: 

I move to deny the variance request at 6369 Munger Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Parcel 
K-11-30-200-039 to the frontage requirement of Section 802.12 of the Township Zoning 
Ordinance for the construction of a pole barn on a lot with 80 feet of frontage, as shown 
on the plot plan included in the Zoning Board of Appeals Application dated October 11, 
2024, based on the following findings of fact that the request does not meet the criteria in 
Section 1704(D) of the Zoning Ordinance. Specifically, the request does not comply with 
the following criteria: (ZBA states reasons for denial).
1. ________________________________________________________________
2. ________________________________________________________________

Respectfully Submitted, 

Fletcher Reyher 
Fletcher Reyher, AICP  
Planning and Development Coordinator 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Planning Department 


































	Check Box24: Yes
	Check Box25: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Address 1: 2777 State Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198
	ParcelID: 13-283-001
	Zoning: I-C
	Lot Number: N/A
	Subdivision: N/A
	Applicant: Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority
	Phone: 734-484-4600 Ext. 116
	Address: 2777 State Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198
	City: Ypsilanti
	State: MI
	Zip: 48198
	Fax: N/A
	Email: lblackburn@ycua.org
	Property Owner: Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority
	Phone_2: 734-484-4600 Ext. 116
	State_2: MI
	Zip_2: 48198
	Address 1_2: 2777 State Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198
	City_2: Ypsilanti
	Fax_2: N/A
	Email_2: lblackburn@ycua.org
	The undersigned: Luther Blackburn
	represents: Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority
	located in the: N/A
	1 That: Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority
	isare the owners of lots: N/A
	Subdivision  Ypsilanti Township Michigan otherwise known as: 2777 State Road
	zoned: Industrial-Commercial
	2 That the petitioner hereby request: variance
	under Section: 1509
	Article: 3.B
	3 The petitioner further state that: LB
	Print Name: Luther Blackburn
	Date: 10/7/2024


